
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 

INSTRUCTION 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOL 

OWNCS1 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

NYC CSD 30 

03/2001 

09/2002 

www.owncs.org 
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i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 750 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 720 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

Yes, 2 sites 

School Site 1 (Primary) 
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m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address 

36 12 35th 
Avenue Site 1 Astoria, NY 
11106 

Phone Number 

717 392 3405 

m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name Work Phone 

School 
Leader Lisa Edmiston 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Brian Ferguson 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

Brian Ferguosn 

DASA 
Coordin Lynn Calta 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours Brian Ferguson 

Emerge
ncies 

District/CSD Grades to be Receives Rental 
Served at Site Assistance for 
for coming year Which Grades (If
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) yes, enter the

NYC CSD 30 K 8 

Alternate Phone 

appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

No 

Email Address 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co- Private Space 

located) space or in private 

space? 
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

(No response) 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

School Site 2 

m2. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD 

Site 2 
31 20 37th St. 
Astoria, NY 
11103 

718 274 2902 NYC CSD 30 

Grades to be Receives Rental 
Served at Site Assistance for 
for coming year Which Grades (If
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) yes, enter the

appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

6 8 No 
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m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Lisa Edmisotn 

Brian Ferguson 

Brian Ferguson 

Lynn Calta 

Brian Ferguson 

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone 

Private Space 

Alternate Phone Email Address 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m2d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 2 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 2 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

(No response) 

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 
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n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Brian Ferguson 

Position Chief Executive Officer 

Phone/Extension  

Email  

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/08/01 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000042203 

1 / 1 
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Submitted to the SUNY Charter Schools Institute on: 

August 1, 2019 

By Brian Ferguson 

36-12 35th Avenue, Astoria, NY 11106 

bferguson@owncs.org 

718-392-3405 

Brian Ferguson, Chief Executive Officer, prepared this 2018-19 Accountability Progress 
Report on behalf of the school’s board of trustees: 

Trustee’s Name Board Position 
Jeanette Betancourt Ed. D. Chair (Executive, Education and Development 

Committees 
Meiissa Chin Vice Chair, Education & Facilities Committees 
Maura Fitzgerald Secretary, (Finance & Audit Committees) 
Charles Guadagnolo Treasurer, (Executive & Facilities Committees) 
Richard Bogle Member, (Facilities Committee) 
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Olubunmi Emigli Member, (Education & Development Committees 
Manu Bhagavan Ph.D. Member, (Education Committee) 

Brian Ferguson has served as the Chief Executive Officer since 2002. 
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OWN Charter School firmly believes that the creation of a strong school culture is one of the 
more important elements that has driven its success. OWN Charter School has created a 
school culture that perpetuates a joyful, high-performing, student-centered learning 
environment. Its school culture is underpinned by a set of shared norms, values and vision 
that focus all its stakeholders’ attention on what is most important and what motivates them 
to work hard toward a common purpose. 

While our culture arises from our mission, vision and established values, it cannot become 
real unless there is an alignment with what we profess to be and what we do as reflected in 
our actions, priorities, budget, symbols, ceremonies and rituals that support, reinforce and 
perpetuate the culture. OWN Charter School believes it has reaped the tremendous benefits 
by ensuring that it: 

• Promotes effort and productivity among all stakeholders 
• Improves collegial and collaborative activities that promote better communication and 

problem solving 
• Builds student and teacher commitment to and identification with the school 
• Energies and motivates students and staff 
• Focuses attention and behavior on what is important and valued. 

Our Pillars of a Positive Community (“Pillars”) curriculum underpins our school culture and is 
designed to impart to our students the values of our shared community. Pillars provides a 
construct by which the school is able to imbue its ethical tenets in all that its stakeholders do 
(administrators, teachers, children, families). Pillars draw the school community together by 
embodying its focus on the social and emotional, as well as academic, development of our 
students. The ten concepts (pillars) honored are kindness, friendship, courage, respect, truth, 
responsibility, self-discipline, fairness, perseverance and citizenship. These pillars 
reverberate throughout the curriculum. Teachers and staff are expected to be exemplars as 
well as elucidators of the pillars. As a school that serves a socio-economically and ethnically 
diverse community, OWN Charter School uses the tenets of the Pillars to ensure that all 
people feel that they are welcome and meaningful members of our diverse school family. 

OWN Charter School defines discipline as helping children develop self-control, self-
regulation, and self-motivation in a school community that is safe for all members.  To 
ensure that an environment is created where teaching and learning can flourish, OWN 
Charter School has codified a series of rules that address proper student behavior, 
maintenance of order within the school and while people are engaged in school activities. 

GOAL 1: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 1: English Language Arts 
All students attending Our World Neighborhood Charter School  will become 
proficient readers and writers of the English Language 

BACKGROUND 
ELA instruction is delivered through the Teachers College Readers and Writers Workshop model.  
In this model, teachers plan lessons based on their assessments of students’ reading and writing 
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abilities. During ELA instruction, the teacher will vary between whole class mini-lessons including 
shared reading and shared writing, read-alouds, interactive writing, small-group guided reading 
and writing lessons, and focused independent reading and writing. ELA instruction has the 
support of the Reading Specialist, Special Education Teacher and/or the ELL Specialist as 
needed to differentiate and to meet the needs of all learners. 

The Readers and Writers Workshop is aligned with CCSS and was developed to ensure students 
read frequently and for extended periods of time to build their stamina and comprehend what they 
between the amount of reading done and reading achievement. Readers and Writers Workshop 
provides strategy lessons that are supported with mentor texts that exemplify a specific reading 
skill or strategy that is modeled in both the Readers and Writers Workshop. Children practice a 
specific skill or strategy with leveled texts that are appropriate for their abilities. Students learn to 
determine importance, draw conclusions, analyze and summarize texts and make inferences.  
Writing units address narrative writing, realistic fiction, informational writing, poetry, persuasive 
essays and letter writing. Exemplar texts for each instructional focus support the reading and 
writing units. OWN also relies heavily on the EngageNY curriculum modules1 for its K-5 
elementary ELA program, purposefully integrating these modules into the ELA instructional block. 

While focusing on phonics and phonemic awareness in the early grades, will also introduce 
students to the joy of reading with authentic literature. OWN Charter School 2 students will 
understand that the goal of reading is to achieve comprehension, obtain information, build 
knowledge, gain insights, explore possibilities, and broaden their perspective2 and the concurrent 
focus on phonics and phonemic awareness will provide them with the tools to do just that. From 
the earliest grades, composition and writing will be emphasized through Units of Study of Readers 
and Writers Workshop. Students will learn to identify themes and sub-themes and learn to think 
(and express their ideas in both writing and speaking) about what they have read. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will 
perform at or above proficiency on the New York State English language arts examination 
for grades 3-8. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program English language arts 
(“ELA”) assessment to students in 3rd grade through 8th grade in April 2018.  Each student’s 
raw score has been converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level.  

1 www.engageny.org 
2 http://www.corestandards.org/about-the-standards/key-points-in-english-language-arts 
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The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration. 
The table indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested.  It also provides a 
detailed breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes 
all students according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second 
year (defined as enrolled by BEDS day of the previous school year).  

2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Not Tested3 

Grade 
Total 

Tested IEP ELL Absen 
t 

Refused Total 
Enrolled 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
All 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Approximately 62 percent of OWN students enrolled in at least their second year passed 
the NYS English language arts exam.  This was not sufficient to meet the absolute measure 
target of 75 percent. 

Performance on 2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

All Students  Enrolled in at least their 
Second Year Grade 

s Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
All 

3 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English 
Language Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
As the table below shows since the 2016 administration of the NYS English arts exam, 
OWN students have showed gains in their levels of achievement.  While in 2016 only 48% 
of the 414 students passed the exam, by 2018, 62% of the 424 students passed the exam.  

During the same time frame we also observed consistent and positive growth in the 
achievement levels in grades 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8.  Grade 3 achievement levels increased 
between 2016 and 2017, but declined between 2017 and 2018.  

OWN ELA Performance by Grade Level and Year 
Percent of OWN Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second 

Year Achieving Proficiency 
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 Grad 

e 
Percen 

t 
Number 
Tested Percent 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 

Perce 
nt 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 
3 71.8 71 64.9 74 
4 47.1 70 58.2 79 
5 58.3 72 52.1 73 
6 50.0 62 70.3 64 
7 53.4 58 65.3 72 
8 67.6 68 59.7 62 

All 58.4 401 61.6 424 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the State English language 
arts exam will meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the 
state’s ESSA accountability system. 

METHOD 
In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute 
proportion of a school's students who have taken the English language arts test have 
scored at the partially proficient, or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 
3 & 4). The percentage of students at each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI 
and determine if the school has met the MIP set each year by the state’s ESSA 
accountability system.  To achieve this measure, all tested students must have a PI value 
that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 English language arts MIP for all students.  The 
PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined scoring at Level 2, 
plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half times the 
percent of students scoring at Level 4.  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
OWN students met and surpassed this measure with an overall PI of 160. 

OWN English Language Arts 2017-18 Performance Index 
Number in Percent of Students at Each Performance Level 
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2016, OWNCS outperformed District 30 by 4.2%; in 2017, OWNCS was 10.8% above 
District 30; and again in 2018 OWNCS outperformed District 30 by 6.2%.  

During the last three testing cycles, OWNCS achievement has consistently improved and 
outpaced the increases in District 30 achievement. 

English Language Arts Performance of OWN Charter School and Local District 30 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Scoring 
at or Above Proficiency Compared to District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
OWN 

Charter 
School 

NYC 
District 

30 

OWN 
Charter 
School 

NYC 
District 

30 

OWN 
Charter 
School 

NYC 
District 

30 
3 71.8  47.2 64.9 56.5 
4 47.1 45.3 58.2 57.5 
5 58.3 42.3 52.1 45.4 
6 50.0 42.3 70.3 60.0 
7 53.4 50.8 65.3 53.4 
8 67.6 57.4 59.7 59.5 
All 58.4 47.6 61.6 55.4 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state English 
language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to 
a meaningful degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically 
disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 
The SUNY Charter Schools Institute (“Institute”) conducts a comparative performance 
analysis, which compares the school’s performance to that of demographically similar public 
schools statewide.  The Institute uses a regression analysis to control for the percentage of 
economically disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. The 
Institute compares the school’s actual performance to the predicted performance of public 
schools with a similar concentration of economically disadvantaged students.  The 
difference between the school’s actual and predicted performance, relative to other schools 
with similar economically disadvantaged statistics, produces an Effect Size.  An Effect Size 
of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree, is the requirement for 
achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the 
demands of the data analysis, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 
2016-17 results, the most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
OWN student met this measure with an overall effect size of 1.62, indicating a comparative 
performance that was “higher than expected to a large degree”.  The effect size ranged 
from 0.82 in 

2018-19 English Lan Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent 
Economically 
Disadvantage 

d 

guage Arts 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Difference 
between 

Actual and 
Predicted 

Effect 
Size 

Actual Predicted 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
All 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to a large degree 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Over the last several years OWN’s English language arts program has proven effective in 
facilitating continued student achievement growth.  In 2015, 2016, and 2017 the effect size 
was 1.26, 1.02, and 1.62 respectively, all illustrating that the school’s overall comparative 
performance was “higher than expected to a large degree”.  

OWN English Language Arts Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year Grades 

Percent 
Economically 

Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested Actual Predicted Effect 

Size 

2015-16 3-8 69.3 447 48.3 32.2 1.02 
2016-17 3-8 77.3 453 57.7 30.8 1.62 
2017-18 3-8 
2018-19 3-8 

Goal 1: Growth Measure5 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile 
in English language arts for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. 

5 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 
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METHOD 
This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one 
year to the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the 
same score in the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state 
exam in 2016-17 and also have a state exam score from 2015-16 including students who 
were retained in the same grade.  Students with the same 2015-16 score are ranked by 
their 2016-17 score and assigned a percentile based on their relative growth in performance 
(student growth percentile).  Students’ growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to 
yield a school’s mean growth percentile.  In order for a school to perform above the target 
for this measure, it must have a mean growth percentile greater than 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2016-17 results, the most recent Growth Model data 
available.6 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
2018-19 English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Mean Growth 
Percentile Grade 

School Target 
4 50.0 
5 50.0 
6 50.0 
7 50.0 
8 50.0 
All 50.0 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Between 2015 and 2017, the mean growth percentile for grade 4 to 8 cohorts have been 
53.4, 49.5, and 54.7. 

English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 Target 
4 35.7 40.7 50.0 
5 53.2 66.4 50.0 
6 57.6 57.4 50.0 
7 54.3 53.6 50.0 
8 52.0 55.4 50.0 

All 49.5 54.7 50.0 

6 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s Business Portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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SUMMARY OF THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 
The trajectory of student achievement in English Language arts continues to be a positive 
one. There has been a consistent trend at each grade level in the numbers and 
percentages of students who are meeting the state’s acceptable proficiency levels. 

While this trend has been positive, the school has not yet met the absolute measure of 
having 75 percent of its students perform at proficiency levels.  

OWNCS students continue to meet its growth measure and comparative measures.  

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at 
least their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York 
State English language arts exam for grades 3-8. 

DID NOT 
MEET 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language 
arts exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s 
ESSA accountability system. 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at 
least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state 
English language arts exam will be greater than that of students in 
the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance 
on the state English language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or 
above (performing higher than expected to a small degree) according 
to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged 
students among all public schools in New York State. (Using 2016-17 
results.) 

Growth 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean 
unadjusted growth percentile in English language arts for all tested 
students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using 2016-17 
results.) 

ACTION PLAN 
OWN is committed to having all its student develop the needed skills to become proficient in 
reading and writing.  The school will continue to support the skills of its instructional 
workforce, to provide students with the highest quality of instruction.  

During the coming year, OWN has committed to improving the outcomes of its reading and 
writing programs in its early childhood program (K-2).  That will be accomplished with a 
robust intervention program that includes reading specialists and assistant teachers.  
Students will also engage with the school’s online English language arts program that is 
aimed at assessing and diagnosing student learning. 

Students in the upper elementary and middle school’s will also have access to the school’s 
robust intervention and enrichment programs.  At the middle school the instructional 
coaches will engage not only the English Language arts teachers, but will work with all other 
teachers in improve the teaching of reading and writing in the content areas. 
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GOAL 2: MATHEMATICS 

Goal 2: Mathematics 
All students attending Our World Neighborhood Charter School  will demonstrate 
competency in their understanding and application of mathematical computation
and problem solving. 

BACKGROUND 
The teaching of mathematics carries equal weight to the teaching of reading and writing. In order 
to compete in almost every aspect of life, OWN Charter School students will have to exhibit 
confidence and proficiency in mathematical skills. The competencies that arise from mastery of 
mathematics—aptitude in problem-solving; facility with numbers; clear communication; logic and 
reasoning, argument and proof; mental discipline; and strategic and analytical thinking—are skills 
that deepen one’s ability and effectiveness in areas beyond the math discipline. These are skills 
and understandings that support the Common Core Standards in mathematics. This strong 
foundation will also enable our students to apply mathematics to the real-world. 

Mastery of basic skills in mathematics is a prerequisite for students to move forward in more 
advanced treatments of these subjects. In keeping with the belief that OWN Charter School must 
offer a balanced approach to instruction, OWN Charter School believes that facility with basic 
skills, knowledge of standard algorithms and mastery of mathematical concepts and skills with 
the help of drill and practice are necessary precursors to OWN Charter School’s students’ ability 
to engage in higher order critical thinking and analytical skills. 

Academic language is as central to mathematics as it is to other academic areas and remains a 
significant source of difficulty for many ELLs who struggle with mathematics. ELLs need rigorous 
and supported opportunities for academic and linguistic success in elementary mathematics. 
Structured mathematics scaffolding tasks that challenge students, while simultaneously providing 
them with the necessary support to achieve the lesson’s specific learning objectives, amplify and 
enrich the linguistic and content knowledge needed to achieve in elementary mathematics. 

OWN Charter School draws heavily on the EngageNY Math modules to deliver math instruction 
in addition to the Go Math curriculum. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will 
perform at proficiency on the New York State mathematics examination for grades 3-8. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program mathematics assessment to 
students in 3rd through 8th grade in April 2018.  Each student’s raw score has been 
converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level.  

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration. 
The table indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested.  It also provides a 
detailed breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes 
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all students according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second 
year. 

2017-18 State Mathematics Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Grade Total 
Tested 

Not Tested7 
Total 

Enrolled IEP ELL Absen 
t 

Refused 

3 82 0 0 0 0 82 
4 82 0 0 0 0 82 
5 82 0 0 0 0 82 
6 75 0 0 0 0 75 
7 77 0 0 0 0 77 
8 60 0 0 0 2* 62 
All 458 0 0 0 2 460 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
OWNCS students did not meet the measure of having at least 75% of all tested students 
enrolled in their second year score at levels 3 and 4 on the NYS Mathematics exam.  

Overall 59.3% of OWN students were proficient in mathematics.  In grade 7 approximately 
74% of them were proficient, while in grade 8 only 35% of them were proficient. 

Performance on 2017-18 State Mathematics Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grade 
All Students  Enrolled in at least their 

Second Year 

s Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

3 63.4 82 60.8 74 
4 62.2 82 62.0 79 
5 57.3 82 58.1 73 
6 62.7 75 62.5 64 
7 72.7 77 73.6 72 
8 35.0 60 35.0 60 
All 59.8 458 59.3 422 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
As the following tables demonstrate OWN students have shown steady growth in their mathematics achievement based on the NYS 
Mathematics exam.  While in 2016 only 52% of OWN students passed the exam by 2018 that number has increased to 59%.  The 
overall trend is therefore a positive one.  However it should be noted that achievement at each grade level has not been consistent.  

7 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English 
Language Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 
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Mathematics 2017-18 Performance Level Index (PI) 
Percent of Students at Each Performance Level Number in 

Cohort Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 
458 16 24 30 30 

PI = 24 + 3 + 30 = 84 
0 
3 + 30 = 60 
0 + 15 = 15 

PI = 159 

Goal 2:  Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year 
and performing at proficiency on the state mathematics exam will be greater than that of all 
students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
A school compares the performance of tested students enrolled in at least their second year 
to that of all tested students in the public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are 
between the results for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their 
second year at the school and the total result for all students at the corresponding grades in 
the school district.8 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
OWNCS met this goal and measure, by having 59.3% of its students at proficiency level 
compared to 51.0% of NYC District 30 students.  At each grade level, excepting at grade 8, 
OWNCS students outperformed NYC District 30 students by as much as 23% points at 
grade 7 and as little as 3% points in grade 3.  

Grade 

Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency 
OWN Charter School 
Students In At Least 

2nd Year 

All NYC District 30 
Students 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested 
3 60.8 74 57.0 1674 
4 62.0 79 52.0 1521 
5 58.1 74 45.0 1378 
6 62.5 64 53.0 1711 
7 73.6 72 50.0 1589 
8 35.0 60 49.0 1269 

8 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing 
grade level ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide.  The NYSED announces the release of 
the data on its News Release webpage. 
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All 59.3 423 51.0 9142 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
OWNCS students continue to out perform their NYC District 30 cohorts.  While OWN 
students have consistently outperformed their District 30 equivalents in grades 3-7, District 
30 grade 8 students have outperformed OWNCS students. 

Mathematics Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Percent of OWNCS Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year 
Who Are at Proficiency Compared to District 30 Students 
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Grade 

OWNCS District 30 OWNCS District 
30 OWNCS District 

30 
3 65.3 72 64.8 49.4 60.8 57.0 
4 66.2 74 52.9 43.6 62.0 52.0 
5 52.6 70 65.8 47.2 58.1 45.0 
6 39.0 59 57.4 48.4 62.5 53.0 
7 54.5 66 44.8 43.5 73.6 50.0 
8 30.0* 37 22.9 36.8 35.0 49.0 
All 51.8 41.1 53.3 44.9 59.3 51.0 

Goal 2:  Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state 
mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to 
a meaningful degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically 
disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 
The Institute conducts a Comparative Performance Analysis, which compares the school’s 
performance to that of demographically similar public schools statewide. The Institute uses 
a regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State.  The Institute compares the school’s actual 
performance to the predicted performance of public schools with a similar concentration of 
economically disadvantaged students.  The difference between the school’s actual and 
predicted performance, relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged 
statistics, produces an Effect Size.  An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than 
expected to a meaningful degree, is the requirement for achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the 
demands of the data analysis, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 
2016-17 results, the most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
The overall Effect size for the 433 students who were tested was 1.22.  With an effect size 
of 1.22 the school’s overall comparative performance was deemed as being “higher than 
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expected to a large degree”.  Therefore, OWN met and surpassed the accountability goal 
and measure.  The effect size in grades 3-7 were all larger than 1.0, meaning that the 
achievement in grades 3-8 was “higher than expected to a large degree”.  For grade 8, the 
effect size was 0.48, “higher than expected to a meaningful degree.”  

2016-17 Mathematics Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent 
Economically 
Disadvantage 

d 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Actual Predicted 

Difference 
between 

Actual and 
Predicted 

Effect 
Size 

3 83 64 41.4 22.5 1.15 
4 78 54 33.9 20.1 1.08 
5 78 67 32.6 34.4 1.92 
6 76 53 25.9 27.1 1.38 
7 69 43 22.6 20.4 1.01 
8 49 24 15.1 8.9 0.48 
All 77.4 433 52.9 29.8 23.2 1.22 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to a large degree 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
As the table below illustrates, the comparative achievement levels for the last thee testing 
cycle has been greater than the 0.79 threshold representing performance at a level that is 
“higher than expected to a large degree”.  As the percent of students who are economically 
disadvantaged dipped below the 70% mark, it was observed that the effect size was less 
than 1.0. Even during that period of time, the overall comparative performance was still 
”higher than expected to a large degree.” 

Mathematics Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year Grades 

Percent 
Economically 

Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested Actual Predicted Effect 

Size 

2014-15 3-8 76.8 421 49.4 28.0 1.12 
2015-16 3-8 69.5 431 49.4 32.3 0.95 
2016-17 3-8 77.4 433 52.9 29.8 1.22 
2017-18 3-8 
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Goal 2: Growth Measure9 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile 
in mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. 

METHOD 
This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one 
year to the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the 
same score in the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state 
exam in 2016-17 and also have a state exam score in 2015-16 including students who were 
retained in the same grade.  Students with the same 2015-16 scores are ranked by their 
2016-17 scores and assigned a percentile based on their relative growth in performance 
(student growth percentile).  Students’ growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to 
yield a school’s mean growth percentile.  In order for a school to meet the measure, the 
school would have to achieve a mean growth percentile above the target of 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2016-17 results, the most recent Growth Model data 
available.10 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
The mean growth percentile for all students in the grade 4-8 cohort was 55.5, which is 
above the target of 50.  Therefore, the school meat and surpassed this accountability goal 
and measure. As the table illustrates the grade 4 mean growth percentile was only 46.8, 
well below 50.  Similarly, the mean growth percentile for the grade 8 cohort was below the 
50.0 target at only 45.6. 

2016-17 Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 
Mean Growth 

Percentile Grade 
School Target 

4 46.8 50.0 
5 61.5 50.0 
6 51.5 50.0 
7 70.5 50.0 
8 45.6 50.0 

All 55.5 50.0 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
In 2015 and 2017 OWN’s grade 4 to 8 cohort met the overall mean growth percentile target.  
In 2015, the mean growth percentile was 52.2 and it had grown to 55.5 in 2017.  It should 
be noted that in 2016 OWN did not meet the overall target and only grades 4 and 7 met the 

9 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 
10 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s business portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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target. While OWN can state that in the last several testing cycles it has met this goal, 
during each year, there was a cohort that did not meet the targeted mean growth percentile. 

Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 
Mean Growth Percentile 

Grade 
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Target 

4 54.6 50.9 46.8 50.0 
5 43.4 49.4 61.5 50.0 
6 56.6 44.6 51.5 50.0 
7 58.8 70.7 70.5 50.0 
8 42.6 26.3 45.6 50.0 

All 52.2 49.6 55.5 50.0 

SUMMARY OF THE MATHEMATICS GOAL 
Overall OWN continues to demonstrate that its students are receiving high quality 
mathematics instruction.  Its students met four out of the five accountability plan measures.  
However, the preceding data does reveal some weaknesses in achievement overall and at 
particular grade levels.  While there is a group of grade 8 students who do not take the NYS 
mathematics exam, but take the Regents Algebra 1 exam, OWN is concerned that the 
remaining students are not performing and achieving at least at the district levels.  

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at 
least their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York 
State mathematics exam for grades 3-8. 

DID NOT 
MEET 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language 
arts exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s 
ESSA accountability system. 

MET 

Comparative 
Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at 
least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state 
mathematics exam will be greater than that of students in the same 
tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

MET 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance 
on the state mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above 
(performing higher than expected to a small degree) according to a 
regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged 
students among all public schools in New York State. (Using 2016-17 
results.) 

MET 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean 
unadjusted growth percentile in mathematics for all tested students in 
grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using the 2016-17 results.) 

MET 
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ACTION PLAN 
Narrative explaining what specific steps the school will take to maintain or improve 
academic performance based on the specific results associated with this goal, focusing in 
particular on strategic interventions including providing enhanced support or program 
revisions for explicit grades, cohorts or sub-populations. 

OWN has increased the use of an educational assessment program called iReady to 
attempt to get another window into the achievement levels of all students. During the 
upcoming year the focus will be on students as they transition from grade 7 to grade 8, to 
find ways to improve teaching, learning and achievement of all students in mathematics. In 
addition to providing more support to teachers, their will be an effort to increase the amount 
of support to the students, by cycling through a second mathematics teacher to do small 
group instruction with students who are in need of extra support. 
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GOAL 3: SCIENCE 

Goal 3: Science 
All students attending the Our World Neighborhood Charter School  will become 
proficient in their understanding and use of Science. 

BACKGROUND 
The National Science Teachers Association supports the notion that inquiry-based science must 
be a basic in the curriculum of every elementary school student. Numerous reports have 
highlighted the importance that students develop problem-solving skills that empower them to 
participate in an increasingly scientific and technological world. Science and teaching students 
about science means more than scientific knowledge. There are three important aspects of 
science. The first of these is the content of science, the basic concepts, and our scientific 
knowledge. The second is the processes of doing science, and the third is scientific ways of 
thinking. Science is about asking questions and finding answers to questions---these are the 
same skills we want our students to use in their daily lives. OWN Charter School’s science 
program is based upon these principles. Our students will explore Life Science, Physical Science, 
Earth Science and the Human Body. 

OWN Charter School’s science curriculum provides students with the essential skills and 
knowledge that they will need to undertake advanced science coursework in high school, and 
beyond. OWN Charter School’s curriculum allows students to build connections that link science 
to technology and societal impacts. Science, technology and societal issues are strongly 
connected to community health, population, natural resources, environmental quality, natural and 
human-induced hazards, and other global challenges. 

OWN Charter School’s science curriculum is delivered through a combination of FOSS Kits, Delta 
Science Modules and OWN Charter School developed curriculum. The FOSS program is aligned 
with the National Science Education Standards, Next Generation Science Standards and to New 
York State science standards. It is also aligned with the school’s workshop model of instruction 
as the pedagogies utilized in the FOSS program include inquiry, hands on active learning, multi-
sensory methods, student to student interaction and discourse and reflective thinking. Delta 
Science Modules provide teachers with additional resources to expand student exploration by 
tailoring the science program to meet students’ needs as well as the curricular standards. The 
modules are used in conjunction with the Foss program kits and the OWN Charter School 
developed curriculum. 

Finally, leveled library books round out the instructional materials for science. Each classroom 
will have a science library. Since language development and literacy are infused as an essential 
element of all core subject instruction, science instruction also incorporates topic-appropriate 
leveled readers that are read to or read by students. Journaling again is an important part of 
science. Students keep science journals in which they document experiments, record 
observations, keep records, describe processes and activities, take notes from texts, oral 
presentations, media and interviews. Leveled readers and journaling serve to not only reinforce 
science concepts, but provide additional opportunities for students to focus on their listening, 
speaking, reading and writing skills. 
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Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will 
perform at or above proficiency on the New York State science examination. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program science assessment to 
students in 4th and 8th grade in spring 2018.  The school converted each student’s raw score 
to a performance level and a grade-specific scaled score.  The criterion for success on this 
measure requires students enrolled in at least their second year to score at proficiency.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
The overall percent of OWNCS students in grades 4 an 8 in at least their second year of 
attendance who achieved proficiency on the NYS Science exam was 62.5.  This is not at 
the 75% threshold and so this measure was not met. 

While 95% of grade 4 students demonstrated proficiency on the science exam, only 42% of 
grade 8 students demonstrated proficiency.  The strength of the elementary school level 
science program continues to be demonstrated by the results indicated below.  However, 
for the first time in many years the performance of trade 8 was at such levels.  The school 
will have to take a closer look at the current instructional practices that have led to this level 
of student achievement. 

OWN Charter School Performance on 2017-18 State Science Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students at Proficiency 
OWN Charter School 
Students In At Least 

2nd Year 

All NYC District 30 
Students 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 94.9 79 92.0 2901 
8 41.5 41 72.0 2551 

All 62.5 120 67.2 5452 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative discussing year-to-year trends during the current Accountability Period.  This 
discussion shows how the school is making progress towards, or maintaining, a high level 
of performance.  The school can use a supplemental table for this section on performance 
disaggregated by number of years in the school.  The table shell appears in Appendix B. 

Also, additional evidence may include other valid and reliable assessment results that 
demonstrate the effectiveness of the science program. 
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Science Performance by Grade Level and School Year 
Percent of OWNCS Students Enrolled in At Least Their 

Second Year at Proficiency 
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Grad 

e Percent 
Proficien 

t 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 

Perce 
nt 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 

Percent 
Proficien 

t 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 
4 94.9 79 
8 41.5 41 
All 62.5 120 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state science exam will be greater than that of all students 
in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
The school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested 
students in the public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are between the results 
for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year and the 
results for the respective grades in the school district of comparison.  Given the timing of the 
state’s release of district science data, the 2017-18 comparative data is not yet available. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
OWN students in grade 4 out performed District 30 students by about 3 percentage points. 
OWN students in grade 8, under performed District 30 students by as much as 30 
percentage points. 

2017-18 State Science Exam 
OWN Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent of Students at Proficiency 
OWN Charter School 
Students In At Least 

2nd Year 

All NYC District 30 
Students12 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 94.9 79 92.0 2901 
8 41.5 41 72.0 2551 

12 This table uses the prior year’s results as 2017-18 district science scores are not yet available. 
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several years OWN has struggled with the recruitment and retention of talented and 
certified science educators.  OWN’s partnership with Urban Advantage has been very 
helpful in enriching the science experience for our students and for the grade 6 teacher.  As 
OWN moves forward it is contemplating several key questions about the science program 
for its middle school students (Grades 6-8).  1. Will it continue to offer both the general 
NYS science curriculum to grade 7 and 8 students in addition to the NYS Regents Living 
Environment program? Or will it just offer one of those programs? And it so, which one and 
how and why?  2.  How will OWN improve its ability to recruit and retain excellent science 
educators? 





	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 07/09/2019 • Last updated: 08/01/2019 

OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 12472489 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 724 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 17227 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

1086740 

823924 

1910664 

2639 

2 / 2 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools (the “Charter 
Schools”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of 
activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Charter Schools’ preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter Schools’ internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools’ June 30, 2018 financial statements, and we 
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements in our report dated October 31, 2018. In our 
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 is 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 22, 2019 on our 
consideration of Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools’ internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Rochester, New York 
October 22, 2019 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

June 30, 

CURRENT ASSETS
  Cash and cash equivalents 
  Grants and contracts receivable 
  Accounts receivable 

Prepaid expenses 

ASSETS 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

2019 2018 

$ 2,314,686 $ 2,605,258 
469,916 609,421

- 8,997
149,211 146,971 

2,933,813 3,370,647 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 1,480,782 845,382 

OTHER ASSETS
  Cash in escrow 
  Security deposits 

103,169 
501,386 

604,555 

76,517
451,386 

527,903 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,019,150 $ 4,743,932 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 417,549 $ 316,937 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 1,280,937 753,699
  Deferred revenue 130,053 325,000 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,828,539 1,395,636 

DEFERRED LEASE LIABILITY 980,435 24,743 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,808,974 1,420,379 

NET ASSETS, without donor restrictions, undesignated 2,210,176 3,323,553 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 5,019,150 $ 4,743,932 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

- 5 -



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
                    

                    
                    
                    

                                 
                    

  
           

   
   

  
     
                

           
              

                      

           

                  

                                
                          
                            

                           
                       

                    

                 
   

                
    

 
 

OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Without donor restrictions 
Year ended June 30, 

2019 2018 
Revenue, gains and other support:
  Public school district
    Resident student enrollment $ 12,597,839 $ 10,531,712

 Students with disabilities 889,359 891,218
  Grants and contracts
    State and local 642,716 317,646
    Federal - Title and IDEA 317,103 351,445
    Federal - other 196,293 658,099
  NYC DOE rental assistance 455,091 -
  Food service / child nutrition program 223,245 142,520 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS 
AND OTHER SUPPORT 15,321,646 12,892,640 

Expenses:
  Program services:

 Regular education 12,282,742 9,133,080
    Special education 1,382,952 893,913
  Total program services 13,665,694 10,026,993
 Management and general 2,904,844 2,275,340 
Fundraising 110,257 106,866 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 16,680,795 12,409,199 

(DEFICIT) SURPLUS FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS (1,359,149) 483,441 

Support and other revenue:

 Contributions
    Foundations 194,947 -
    Individuals 9,918 17,820
 Fundraising 6,274 9,283 
Interest income 2,634 17,973
 Miscellaneous income 31,999 84,404 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 245,772 129,480 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (1,113,377) 612,921 

Net assets at beginning of year 3,323,553 2,710,632 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 2,210,176 $ 3,323,553 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Year ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

Program Services Supporting Services 
Management Fundraising 

No. of Regular Special and and special 
Positions Education Education Sub-total general events Sub-total Total Total 

Personnel services costs:
  Administrative staff personnel

 33 

$ 968,601 $ 181,270 $ 1,149,871 $
 1,166,152 $          82,175 $ 1,248,327 $ 

2,398,198 $ 2,019,003 
  Instructional personnel

 90 

       5,028,876       846,213 5,875,089 

-

-

-

   5,875,089        4,976,649 
  Non-instructional personnel

 1 

            84,068 

- 84,068 

44,277 

- 44,277 
128,345 

          129,055 

Total personnel services costs

 124 

       6,081,545        1,027,483 7,109,028 

1,210,429 

         82,175        1,292,604 8,401,632 7,124,707 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes        1,370,883 175,151 1,546,034 

257,713 

 20,421 278,134 1,824,168        1,463,978 
Retirement           258,328             34,481    292,809 

56,404 

              4,931 61,335 
354,144 

          324,253 
Legal service  -

-

-
38,422 

- 38,422 
38,422 

   32,962 
Accounting / audit services  -

-

-
46,313 

- 46,313        46,313             44,700 
Other purchased / professional / consulting services           327,016             81,786 

408,802 
349,363 

-
349,363 

758,165 
          517,766 

Building and land rent / lease / facility finance interest   2,073,602 

-

2,073,602          502,088 
-

502,088    2,575,690           964,439 
Repairs and maintenance           330,165 

-
330,165 

68,628 

- 68,628 
398,793 

          268,438 
Insurance             76,284 

- 76,284 

17,606 

- 17,606 
93,890 

            83,369 
Utilities           336,798 

-
336,798 

78,033 

- 78,033 
414,831 

          296,247 
Supplies / materials           241,243 

800 242,043 

101,564 
-

101,564 

343,607 

          283,093 
Equipment / furnishings             28,105 -

28,105 

20,875 

- 20,875 

48,980 

            50,511 
Staff development           104,084             20,051 

124,135 

16,881 

- 16,881 
141,016 

          103,724 
Marketing / recruitment           154,750             43,200 

197,950 

-

-

-
197,950 

      79,005 
Technology             90,104 

-

90,104 

51,179 

-
  51,179 

141,283 

          100,718 
Food service           415,930 

-
415,930 

-

-

-
415,930 

          381,538 
Student services             21,887 

- 21,887 -

-
21,887 

            37,043 
Office expense             84,962 

- 84,962 

23,825 

-
23,825 

108,787 

            81,671 
Depreciation           263,774 263,774 

40,197 

-
  40,197 

303,971 

            95,703 
Other             23,282 

- 23,282 

25,324 

              2,730 28,054 

51,336 

            75,334 

$ 12,282,742 $ 1,382,952 $ 13,665,694 $
 2,904,844 $ 110,257 $ 3,015,101  $ 16,680,795 $ 12,409,199 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Year ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Change in net assets $ (1,113,377) $ 612,921 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
     provided from operating activities:

 Depreciation 303,971 95,703
 Bad debt expense 5,897 32,751

      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Accounts receivable 3,100 (29,770)
        Grants and contracts receivable 139,505 59,234
        Prepaid expenses and other current assets (2,240) (43,380)
        Accounts payable and accrued expenses 100,612 124,910
        Due to New York State Department of Education - (791,128)
        Accrued payroll and benefits 527,238 16,499
        Deferred revenue (194,947) 325,000
        Deferred lease liability 955,692 24,743 

NET CASH  PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 725,451 427,483 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchases of property and equipment (939,371) (756,522)
  Security deposits (50,000) (400,000)
  Change in escrow account (26,652) (41)  

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,016,023) (1,156,563) 

NET DECREASE IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (290,572) (729,080) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,605,258 3,334,338 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
AT END OF YEAR $ 2,314,686 $ 2,605,258 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Charter School 
Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools is an education corporation that has authority to operate the Charter 
Schools as described below. The education corporation was organized to increase learning opportunities for 
students through innovative educational programs and to enable parents to be more involved in their children’s 
education. 

Our World Neighborhood Charter School (“OWN”) is a charter school that operates under the education 
corporation in the borough of Queens, New York. On July 18, 2012, the Board of Regents of the University of 
the State of New York granted OWN a charter valid for a term of five years and renewed for an additional five 
years through July 31, 2022. 

On June 13, 2016, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York amended the OWN charter 
agreement permitting additional charter schools under OWN’s education corporation. During the 2017 fiscal 
year, OWN added Our World Neighborhood Charter School 2 (“OWN 2”) under its expanded charter. The 
school opened for students in Fall 2018. 

On October 18, 2018, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York approved an additional 
charter school, Our World Neighborhood Charter School 3 (“OWN 3”), to operate under the OWN education 
corporation. OWN 3 is expected to open in Fall 2020. Operating activities have not commenced as of June 30, 
2019. 

Basis of presentation 
The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of OWN, OWN 2 and OWN 3 (collectively 
referred to as the “Charter Schools”). All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

Financial Statement presentation 
The financial statements of the Charter Schools have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The 
Charter Schools report information regarding their financial position and activities according to two classes of 
net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. 

These classes of net assets are defined as follows: 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions.  
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of 
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where 
the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity.  Donor-imposed restrictions are released when 
a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the 
resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. The Charter Schools had no net assets with donor 
restrictions at June 30, 2019 or 2018. 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – The net assets over which the Board of Trustees has discretionary 
control to use in carrying on the Charter Schools’ operations in accordance with the guidelines established by 
the Charter Schools. The Board may designate portions of the current net assets without donor restrictions 
for specific purposes, projects or investment.   

Revenue and support recognition 
Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the Charter Schools’ charter status and based on the 
number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the Charter Schools 
when qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. 

Contributions are recognized as revenue in the year the pledge is received and documented. 

Contributions 
Contributions received are recorded in the appropriate class of net assets depending on the existence of any 
donor restrictions. A contribution that is received and expended in the same year for a specific purpose is 
classified as revenue without donor restrictions. 

Contributions are recorded as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose restriction is 
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and 
reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and certain money market account balances are maintained at financial institutions located in New York 
and are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 at each institution. The Charter Schools consider all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. In the normal 
course of business, the cash and cash equivalent account balances at any given time may exceed insured limits.  
However, the Charter Schools have not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe they are 
exposed to significant risk in cash and cash equivalents. 

Cash in escrow 
The Charter Schools maintain cash in escrow accounts, in accordance with the terms of the Charter 
Agreements. A portion of the account is invested in a certificate of deposit with a maturity date of one year or 
less. The escrow is restricted to fund legal and other costs related to the dissolution of the Charter Schools, 
should this become necessary. 

Grants and contracts receivable 
Grants and contracts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding 
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status 
of individual receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management 
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no 
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2019 or 2018. 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method on a 
basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which typically range from 
three to twenty years. 

Security deposits 
Security deposits consist of payments to third parties in connection with facility lease agreements. 

Deferred revenue 
The Charter Schools record grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, 
at which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Deferred lease liability 
The Charter Schools leases their facilities. The leases contain pre-determined fixed escalations of the base rent.  
In accordance with GAAP, the Charter Schools recognize the related rent expense on a straight-line basis and 
record the difference between the recognized rental expense and the amounts payable under the lease as a 
deferred lease liability. 

Tax exempt status 
The education corporation is a tax-exempt entity under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. 

The education corporation files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the 
years ended June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2019 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS. Management of 
the education corporation believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly it has not 
recognized any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

Contributed services 
The Charter Schools receive contributed services from volunteers to serve on the Board of Trustees. In 
addition, the Charter Schools receive transportation services and a school nurse for the students from the local 
district. The Charter Schools were unable to determine a value for these services. 

Marketing and costs 
The Charter Schools expense marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs 
approximated $198,000 and $79,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Reclassifications 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to confirm to the current year presentation. 

Comparatives for year ended June 30, 2018 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by net 
asset class or functional classification. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Charter Schools’ financial statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the summarized information was derived. 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Change in accounting principle 
During August 2016 FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14 “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities”. The main provisions of ASU 2016-14 
require a Not-For-Profit (NFP) to: 

1) Present on the face of the statement of financial position amounts for two classes of net assets at the end of 
the period, rather than three classes. That is, an NFP will report amounts for net assets with donor 
restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions, as well as the currently required amount for total net 
assets.  

2) Present on the face of the statement of activities the amount of the change in each of the two classes of net 
assets (noted in item 1) rather than that of the required three classes as in prior years. An NFP would 
continue to report the currently required amount of the change in total net assets for the period. 

3) Continue to present on the face of the statement of cash flows the net amount for operating cash flows 
using either the direct or indirect method of reporting but no longer require the presentation or disclosure of 
the indirect method (reconciliation) if using the direct method. 

4) Provide enhanced disclosures about:  

a) Composition of net assets with donor restrictions at the end of the period and how the restrictions affect 
the use of resources. 

b) Qualitative information that communicates how a NFP manages its liquid resources available to meet 
cash needs for general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date. 

c) Quantitative information, and additional qualitative information, that communicates the availability of 
an NFP’s financial assets at the statement of financial position date to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date. Availability of a financial asset 
may be affected by (1) its nature, (2) external limits imposed by donors, grantors, laws, and contracts 
with others, and (3) internal limits imposed by Board of Trustee decisions. 

d) Amounts of expenses by both their natural classification and their functional classification. That 
analysis of expenses is to be provided in one location. 

e) Method(s) used to allocate costs among program and support functions. 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

ASU 2016-14 is effective for financial statements beginning after December 15, 2017 and was applied 
retrospectively except for disclosures regarding liquidity and availability of resources, which are presented only 
for the current year. There was no effect on total assets or changes in net assets. The Charter Schools have 
adopted the amendments effective July 1, 2018. 

New accounting pronouncements 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued a new standard related to revenue 
recognition. Under the standard, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods 
or services in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for those 
goods or services. For nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019. The Charter School is currently evaluating the provisions of this 
standard to determine the impact the new standard will have on the Charter Schools’ financial position or 
results of operations. 

Leases 
In February 2016, the FASB issued a new standard related to leases to increase transparency and 
comparability among entities by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and lease liabilities 
on the statement of financial position.  Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition 
of ROU assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under current U.S. 
GAAP. For nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020.  Recently an 
exposure draft was issued which would delay the effective date by one year. The Charter School is currently 
evaluating the provisions of this standard to determine the impact the new standard will have on the Charter 
Schools’ financial position or results of operations. 

Subsequent events 
The Charter School has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through October 22, 2019, which is the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted. 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE B:  LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

The Charter School regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual 
commitments. The Charter Schools’ main source of liquidity is its cash accounts. 

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Charter 
School considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of education and public service as well as the 
conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.  

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the Charter 
School operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general 
expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. Refer to the statement of cash flows which identifies 
the sources and uses of the Charter Schools’ cash and shows positive cash generated by operations for fiscal 
year 2019. 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, 
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following at June 30, 2019: 

Amount

  Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,314,686 
  Grants and contracts receivable 469,916 

Total financial assets available to management 
for general expenditures within one year $ 2,784,602 

NOTE C: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

June 30, 
2019 2018 

Leasehold improvements $ 4,242,268 $ 4,148,651 
Equipment and furniture and fixtures 2,773,885 1,928,131 

7,016,153 6,076,782 
Less accumulated depreciation 5,535,371 5,231,400 

$ 1,480,782 $ 845,382 

Total depreciation expense was $303,971 and $95,703 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively.   
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE D: COMMITMENTS

The Charter School leases classrooms and office facilities under non-cancelable lease agreements expiring at 
various dates through August 2048. Total rent expense for these spaces amounted to approximately $2,526,500 
and $915,200 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

The Charter School leases office equipment under non-cancelable lease agreements expiring at various dates 
through July 2022. Total expense for these leases amounted to approximately $106,500 and $74,100 for the 
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

The minimum lease payments for the above cited leases are approximately as follows: 

The Charter School has also entered into a lease agreement with a lessor for an additional facility intended for 
OWN3. The lease terms are currently being negotiated, but partial payments of $50,000 have been made 
toward a $500,000 security deposit and $21,213 (included in prepaid expenses at June 30, 2019) of an 
anticipated $2,000,000 contribution for the Charter Schools’ share of the landlord’s construction work. The 
lease is expected to be finalized in December 2019. 

Facilities Equipment 
Year ending June 30, Leases Leases Total 

2020 $ 2,094,100 $ 122,900 $ 2,217,000 
2021
2022
2023
2024

Thereafter

       2,130,400 
       1,898,100 
       2,143,800 
       2,227,000 
     58,334,200 

$ 68,827,600 $ 

         107,200
 85,200

 2,700
 -
-

318,000 

    2,237,600 
    1,983,300 
    2,146,500 
    2,227,000 
  58,334,200 

$ 69,145,600 

NOTE E: RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Charter School sponsors a 401(k) plan (the “Plan”) for its employees. All employees of the Charter School 
are eligible to participate. The Charter School matches 100% of the employee’s contributions up to 3% of 
eligible compensation and makes a discretionary profit sharing contribution up to 3% of eligible compensation 
per year. During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Charter School contributed approximately 
$354,100 and $324,300, respectively, to the Plan. 

NOTE F: CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in 
disallowance of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Charter School. Management is of the opinion that 
such disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. 
Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential 
claims. 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE G: CONCENTRATIONS 

At June 30, 2019, approximately 41% of grants and other receivables are due from New York State Department 
of Education relating to certain grants. During the year ended June 30, 2019, 92% of total operating revenue 
and support came from per-pupil funding provided by New York State. The per-pupil rate is set annually by 
the State based on the school district in which the Charter Schools’ students are located. 

At June 30, 2018, approximately 95% of grants and other receivables are due from New York State Department 
of Education relating to certain grants. During the year ended June 30, 2018, 89% of total operating revenue 
and support came from per-pupil funding provided by New York State. The per-pupil rate is set annually by 
the State based on the school district in which the Charter Schools’ students are located. 

NOTE H: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program or 
supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. 
Expenses (including salaries, benefits and payroll taxes, purchased services, occupancy costs, and supplies and 
materials) which are allocated to  more than  one program or  supporting function are allocated on the basis of 
estimates of time, effort, and usage.  
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

   
        
   

      
      

   
   

    
    

 
 

 
 
 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Board of Trustees 
Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools 

We have audited the financial statements of Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2019, which contained an unmodified opinion 
on those financial statements.  Our audit  was  performed for the  purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole. The financial information hereinafter is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not 
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used  to prepare the financial  statements.  The  
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Rochester, New York 
October 22, 2019 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BY CHARTER 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Our World Our World 
Neighborhood Neighborhood 
Charter School Charter School 2 Eliminations Total 

Revenue, gains, and other support:
  Public school district
    Resident student enrollment $ 11,081,635 $ 1,516,204 $ - $ 12,597,839 
    Students with disabilities 835,765 53,594 - 889,359
  Grants and contracts
    State and local 389,749 252,967 - 642,716
    Federal - Title and IDEA 268,035 49,068 - 317,103
    Federal - other - 196,293 - 196,293
  NYC DOE rental assistance - 455,091 - 455,091
  Food service / child nutrition program 223,245  - - 223,245 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS 
AND OTHER SUPPORT 12,798,429 2,523,217 - 15,321,646 

Expenses:
  Program services:
    Regular education 9,152,124 3,130,618 - 12,282,742
    Special education 1,161,215 221,737  - 1,382,952

  Total program services 10,313,339 3,352,355 - 13,665,694
  Management and general 2,158,377 746,467 - 2,904,844 

Fundraising 90,453 19,804  - 110,257 
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 12,562,169 4,118,626  - 16,680,795 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FROM 
SCHOOL OPERATIONS 236,260 (1,595,409) - (1,359,149) 

Support and other revenue:
 Contributions
    Foundations - 194,947 - 194,947
    Individuals 9,918 - - 9,918
 Fundraising 6,274 - - 6,274
 Interest income 2,587 47 - 2,634
 Miscellaneous income 27,929 4,070 - 31,999 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 46,708 199,064  - 245,772 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 282,968 (1,396,345) - (1,113,377) 

Net assets at beginning of year 2,974,180 349,373  - 3,323,553 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 3,257,148 $ (1,046,972) $ - $ 2,210,176 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BY CHARTER – OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Program Services Supporting Services 
Management 

No. of Regular Special and 
Positions Education Education Sub-total general Fundraising Sub-total Total 

Personnel services costs:
  Administrative staff personnel  27 $ 819,101 $ 100,379 $ 919,480 $ 976,289 $ 66,175 $ 1,042,464 $ 1,961,944 

Instructional personnel  75 
4,220,850 

738,975 

4,959,825 

-
- -

4,959,825 Non-instructional personnel
 1 

84,068 -

84,068 44,277 

-

44,277 128,345 
Total personnel services costs  103 

5,124,019 
        839,354 

5,963,373 1,020,566 66,175 
1,086,741 

7,050,114 
Fringe benefits and payroll taxes

 1,150,111 
153,150 

1,303,261 
238,516 

16,617 255,133 
1,558,394 Retirement

 230,146 

29,074 259,220 
52,514 

4,931 57,445 

          316,665 
Legal service

 -
-

-

37,653 

-

37,653 
37,653 

Accounting / audit services

 -
-

-

39,300 -

39,300 
39,300 

Other purchased / professional / consulting services

 222,056 

81,786 303,842 239,547 

-

239,547 
543,389 Building and land rent / lease / facility finance interest

 878,590 -

878,590   216,125 

-

216,125 1,094,715 
Repairs and maintenance

 247,560 -

247,560 
49,711 

-

         49,711 

297,271 

Insurance

 65,016 -

65,016 
14,789 

-

14,789 

79,805 

Utilities

 230,997 -

 230,997 
54,667 

-

         54,667 

285,664 

Supplies / materials

 150,502 800 
 151,302 

71,322 

-

71,322 
222,624 Equipment / furnishings

 22,960 -

22,960 16,494 

-

16,494 

            39,454 
Staff development

 89,878 

20,051 109,929 
13,856 

-

13,856 123,785 
Marketing / recruitment

 49,708 

37,000 86,708 

-
- -

86,708 

Technology

 74,920 -

74,920 47,850 

-

47,850 

          122,770 
Food service

 415,930 -

 415,930 

-
-

- 415,930 

Student services

 18,218 -

18,218 

-

-

18,218 

Office expense

 62,498 -

62,498 18,268 

-

18,268 

80,766 
Depreciation

 97,932 -

97,932  5,515 

-
5,515 

103,447 Other

 21,083 -

21,083 21,684 
2,730 24,414 

45,497 

$ 9,152,124 $ 1,161,215  $10,313,339 $ 2,158,377 $ 90,453 $ 2,248,830 $ 12,562,169 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BY CHARTER – OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOL 2 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Program Services Supporting Services 
Management 

No. of Regular Special and 
Positions Education Education Sub-total general Fundraising Sub-total Total 

Personnel services costs:
  Administrative staff personnel

 6 
$ 149,500 $ 

80,891 
$ 230,391 $ 189,863 $ 16,000 $ 205,863 $ 436,254 

  Instructional personnel
 15 

808,026 

107,238 
915,264 

- -

-         915,264 
Total personnel services costs

 21 
957,526 

188,129 1,145,655 

189,863 

          16,000 

205,863 

     1,351,518 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes

 220,772 
22,001 

     242,773 

19,197 3,804 23,001 

        265,774 
Retirement  28,182 

5,407 33,589 
3,890 

-

3,890 

   37,479 
Legal service

 -
- - 769 

-
769 

769 
Accounting / audit services

 -
-

-
7,013 

-

7,013 

            7,013 
Other purchased / professional / consulting services

 104,960 

-

104, 60 109,816 

-

109,816 

      214,776 
Building and land rent / lease

 1,195,012 

-

1,195,012 

285,963 

-

285,963 

     1,480,975 
Repairs and maintenance  82,605 

-

82,605 
18,917 

-

          18,917         101,522 
Insurance  11,268 

-

11,268 

2,817 

-

2,817 
          14,085 

Utilities         105,801 

-

     105,801 

23,366 

-

          23,366         129,167 
Supplies / materials  90,741 

-

90,741 

30,242 

-

30,242 

        120,983 
Equipment / furnishings  5,145 

-
5,145 4,381 

-

4,381 

 9,526 
Staff development  14,206 

-

14,206 
3,025 

-

3,025

          17,231 
Marketing / recruitment

 105,042 6,200 

     111,242 

- -

-         111,242 
Technology  15,184 

-

15,184 
3,329 

-

3,329 

          18,513 
Student services  3,669 

-

3,669 

- -

-             3,669 
Office expense  22,464 

-

22,464 5,557 

-

5,557 

28,021 
Depreciation

 165,842 165,842 
34,682 

-

34,682 

        200,524 
Other  2,199 

-
2,199 

3,640 

-

3,640 

            5,839 

$ 3,130,618 $ 221,737 $  3 352 355 $ 746,467 $ 19,804 $ 766,271 $ 4,118,626 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

    
  

 
   

 

 
      

 
    

 
  

 
 

    
     
      

   
   

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and the related statements of activities and changes 
in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Our World Neighborhood Charter 
Schools’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools’ internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Our World Neighborhood Charter 
Schools’ internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools’ financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Rochester, New York 
October 22, 2019 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Finding 2018-001 

Statement of condition 
During our audit, we noted the prior year financial statements were materially misstated as the Charter School was 
using depreciable lives for leasehold improvements of 39 years. The Charter School was following the useful lives 
as described in a Financial Policies and Procedures Manual developed in the past with the assistance of prior 
advisors, however Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) requires that the lives be limited to the 
lesser of the remaining term of the lease or the useful life of the improvement. The lease terms ranged from 2-15 
years. When considering the size of the restatement, we believe the adjustments indicate a material weakness in 
internal control over financial reporting is present. 

Cause 
The Charter School using depreciable lives for leasehold improvements which were in excess of the terms of the 
underlying lease agreements. 

Criteria and effect of conditions 
According to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the Charter School requires 
leasehold improvements to be amortized over the remaining term of the underlying lease. Material errors were 
present in the financial statements and period expenses for depreciation were understated. 

Recommendation 
Depreciable lives should reflect the useful lives of the asset or, in the case of leasehold improvements, the lesser of 
the useful life or the remaining lease term. 

Management response 
Since the inception of Our World Neighborhood Charter Schools, leasehold improvement was calculated based on 
its policy and procedures manual which stated that leasehold improvement be amortized over 39 years. Under the 
guidance of other independent audit firm management believed that the depreciation method was in accordance 
with the accounting principles. While management believes that the aggregate amount to correct the depreciation of 
leasehold improvement is material, management does not believe that there is a material weakness of internal 
control over financial reporting as the prior year financial statement was restated to reflect the changes.  
Accordingly, the audited financial statement as of June 30, 2018 reflects depreciation of leasehold improvement 
based on generally accepted accounting principles. 

Current status 
During the 2019 audit, we noted no material audit adjustments related to depreciation expense were necessary. 
Useful lives of leasehold improvements were properly determined by management. 
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Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District 
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition) 
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ANNUAL BUDGET & QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 

Our World Neighborhood Charter School 

SCHOOL 
Name: Our World Neighborhood Charter School 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Contact Name: Karrine Montaque 
Contact Title: Chief Financial Officer 
Contact Email:  
Contact Phone:  

REPORT PERIOD 
Current Academic Year: 2019-20 
Prior Academic Year: 2018-19 
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PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGET 
2018-19 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2  QUARTER 3 QUAR  

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S) 
Actual 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 
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8 9 10 11 12 
73 

ACTUAL QUARTERLY 
TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT 

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 
Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

TER 4 

D' Column(s) 
s for the 

TER 4 

Page 



   
     TER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 
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OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOL 

Please enter balance sheet data forthe Ed Corp 2019-20Our World Neighborhood Charter School (Combined) 
only on thistemplate. 

The balance sheet should include data for Prior Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

allcharter schools operated by the Ed Corp. 
2018-19 As of 9/30 As of 12/31 As of 3/31 As of 6/30 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 

Contributions and other receivables 

-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS - - - - -

-PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net - - - -

-OTHER ASSETS - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS - - - - -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other 

-
-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES - - - - -

-LONG-TERM DEBT and NOTES PAYABLE, net current maturities - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES - - - - -

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

-
-

- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL NET ASSETS - - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS - - - - -
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Annual Report Requirement 
for SUNY Authorized Charter Schools 

OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOL 

2019-20 

Administrative $0.00expenditures per pupil: 

Per NYS Statute Administrative expenditures per pupil: the sum of all 
general administration salaries and other general 
administration expenditures divided by the total 
number of enrolled students. Employee benefit 
costs or expenditures should not be reported here. 

*NOTE: THIS TAB ONLY NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED FOR Q4 
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Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/09/2019 • Last updated: 08/01/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 
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1a. Are there more than 9 No 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

7 

0 

0 

7 

9 

8 
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Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/09/2019 • Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

OUR WORLD NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 

OWNCS holds multiple Open House events
through out January, February, and March
each year. We post the open house dates on
our website for the public.
OWNCS also advertises in many local papers
in many areas of Queens. They include:
Queens Family, Queens Parent, Queens
Chronicle. 
OWNCS has also done some Radio Ads with I 
Heart Radio which reaches a wide variety of
listeners in the New York area. We also held Econom some public events with two different DJsically from I Heart in Queens. Disadva OWNCS visited many local Pre K centers,ntaged community centers, local libraries, and
businesses to introduce our schools to their 
families and the community where each
school is located. 
At all open houses and community events,
OWNCS explicitly tells the attendees that
OWNCS has a vibrant and diverse 
community which includes and welcomes
and supports students with special needs,
English Language Learners and the
economically disadvantaged. 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

OWNCS is advertising with the Linden Movie
Theatre and the Queens Mall introducing our
schools to the many different neighborhoods
in the Queens and Brooklyn area while
reaching a wide variety of families.
OWNCS will advertise with the local papers
such as Queens Family, Queens Parent, and
Queens Chronicle reaching a wide variety of
families. 
OWNCS will canvass the Queens 
neighborhoods to introduce our schools and
inform businesses and families of our quality
programs letting them know that all are
welcome to apply.
OWNCS will attend as many community
events such as Community Board 1 and 2,
LIC Springs, Middle School Fairs, etc.
necessary to inform families about our
schools and letting them know that all are
welcome to apply.
OWNCS will host many Open House events
beginning in January of 2020.
At all open houses and community events,
OWNCS explicitly tells the attendees that
OWNCS has a vibrant and diverse community
which includes and welcomes and supports
students with special needs, English
Language Learners and the economically
disadvantaged. 
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OWNCS holds multiple Open House events
through out January, February, and March
each year. We post the open house dates on
our website for the public.
OWNCS also advertises in many local papers
in many areas of Queens. They include:
Queens Family, Queens Parent, Queens
Chronicle. 
OWNCS has also done some Radio Ads with I 
Heart Radio which reaches a wide variety of
listeners in the New York area. We also held 
some public events with two different DJs
from I Heart in Queens. 
OWNCS visited many local Pre K centers,
community centers, local libraries, and
businesses to introduce our schools to their 
families and the community where each
school is located. 
At all open houses and community events,
OWNCS explicitly tells the attendees that
OWNCS has a vibrant and diverse 
community which includes and welcomes
and supports students with special needs,
English Language Learners and the
economically disadvantaged. 

OWNCS holds multiple Open House events
through out January, February, and March
each year. We post the open house dates on
our website for the public.
OWNCS also advertises in many local papers
in many areas of Queens. They include:
Queens Family, Queens Parent, Queens
Chronicle. 
OWNCS has also done some Radio Ads with I 
Heart Radio which reaches a wide variety of
listeners in the New York area. We also held 
some public events with two different DJs
from I Heart in Queens. 
OWNCS visited many local Pre K centers,
community centers, local libraries, and
businesses to introduce our schools to their 
families and the community where each
school is located. 
At all open houses and community events,
OWNCS explicitly tells the attendees that 

OWNCS is advertising with the Linden Movie
Theatre and the Queens Mall introducing our
schools to the many different neighborhoods
in the Queens and Brooklyn area while
reaching a wide variety of families.
OWNCS will advertise with the local papers
such as Queens Family, Queens Parent, and
Queens Chronicle reaching a wide variety of
families. 
OWNCS will canvass the Queens 
neighborhoods to introduce our schools and
inform businesses and families of our quality
programs letting them know that all are
welcome to apply.
OWNCS will attend as many community
events such as Community Board 1 and 2,
LIC Springs, Middle School Fairs, etc.
necessary to inform families about our
schools and letting them know that all are
welcome to apply.
OWNCS will host many Open House events
beginning in January of 2020.
At all open houses and community events,
OWNCS explicitly tells the attendees that
OWNCS has a vibrant and diverse community
which includes and welcomes and supports
students with special needs, English
Language Learners and the economically
disadvantaged. 

OWNCS is advertising with the Linden Movie
Theatre and the Queens Mall introducing our
schools to the many different neighborhoods
in the Queens and Brooklyn area while
reaching a wide variety of families.
OWNCS will advertise with the local papers
such as Queens Family, Queens Parent, and
Queens Chronicle reaching a wide variety of
families. 
OWNCS will canvass the Queens 
neighborhoods to introduce our schools and
inform businesses and families of our quality
programs letting them know that all are
welcome to apply.
OWNCS will attend as many community
events such as Community Board 1 and 2,
LIC Springs, Middle School Fairs, etc.
necessary to inform families about our
schools and letting them know that all are
welcome to apply.
OWNCS will host many Open House events
beginning in January of 2020. 
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OWNCS has a vibrant and diverse 
community which includes and welcomes
and supports students with special needs,
English Language Learners and the
economically disadvantaged. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

At all open houses and community events,
OWNCS explicitly tells the attendees that
OWNCS has a vibrant and diverse community
which includes and welcomes and supports
students with special needs, English
Language Learners and the economically
disadvantaged. 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Created: 07/09/2019 • Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

76 27 42 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

7 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

9 90 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

1 7 
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3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

Teachers have taken on leadership roles and transitioned to other positions such as reading teachers. 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Yes 

Thank you 
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